VERMILION PARISH CLERK OF COURT

Abbeville, Louisiana

Financial Report

Year Ended June 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1-2
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS)	
Statement of net position Statement of activities	5 6
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)	9
Balance sheet - governmental fund Reconciliation of the governmental fund balance sheet	8
to the statement of net position Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -	9
governmental fund	10
Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of governmental fund to the statement of activities	11
Statement of fiduciary net position Statement of changes in fiduciary net position	12 13
Notes to basic financial statements	14-37
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary comparison schedule: General Fund	39
Schedule of changes in the Clerk's total OPEB liability and related ratios	40
Schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability	41
Schedule of pension contributions	42
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Schedule of justice system funding - collecting/disbursing entity	44
COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of	
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with	45.5
Government Auditing Standards Schedule of findings and responses	46-47 48-49
Summary schedule of prior year audit findings	40-49 50
Summary schedule of management's corrective action plan	51



1231 East Laurel Avenue Eunice, LA 70535

OTHER LOCATIONS:
Lafayette Morgan City Abbeville

P 337-457-4146 F 337-457-5060

DSECPAS COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Diane Meaux Broussard Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court Abbeville, Louisiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, major fund, and the fiduciary fund of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court, a component unit of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Clerk of Court's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, major fund and the fiduciary fund of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 13 to the financial statements, in 2021, the Clerk adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of funding progress for the budgetary comparison schedule, the schedule of changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of contributions on pages 37 through 40 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's basic financial statements. The combining statements of agency fund assets and liabilities, and changes therein, and the schedule of justice system funding – collecting/disbursing entity are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6, 2021, on our consideration of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Abbeville, Louisiana December 6, 2021 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS)

Statement of Net Position June 30, 2021

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS	
Current assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 268,092
Accounts receivable	35,162
Due from other governments	45,604
Capital assets, net of depreciation	81,694
Total assets	455,593
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB	229,023
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions	997,300
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources	1,226,323
LIABILITIES	
Current liabilities:	
Accounts payable	11,950
Other accrued liabilities	3,038
Long term liabilities: Compensated absences	37,057
	2,331,401
OPEB obligations Net pension liability	2,463,233
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Total liabilities	4,846,679
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB	746,561
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions	_
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	746,561
NET POSITION	
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt	81,694
Unrestricted (deficit)	(3,993,018)
Total net position (deficit)	\$ (3,911,324)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2021

Activities	Expenses	Charges for Services	Operatio	n Revenue	es Capital Grants and Contributions	Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets Total Governmental Activities
Tenviles	Expenses		una con	THE TOTAL COLD	una commoditorio	rictivities
Governmental activities:						
General government	\$ 2,617,018	\$ 2,190,508	\$	30,194	\$ -	\$ (396,316)
Total primary government	\$ 2,617,018	\$ 2,190,508	\$	30,194	\$ -	(396,316)
		General reve	enues:			
		Interest in	come			5,686
		Appropria	tion from	Clerk's Su	applement Fund	24,600
		Appropria	tion from	Vermilion	Parish Police Jur	y 49,000
		Non-empl	oyer pens	ion contrib	oution	118,495
		SHIT-INE SE	neral revo			197,781
		Change in no	et assets			(198,535)
		Net position	(deficit)	- beginning	g of year	_(3,712,789)
		Net position	(deficit)	end of ye	ear	\$ (3,911,324)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)

Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund June 30, 2021

	General Fund
ASSETS	
Cash and cash equivalents Receivables, net Prepaid expenditures Due from other governments Total assets	\$ 268,092 35,162 25,041 45,604 \$ 373,899
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	
Liabilities: Accounts payable Other accrued liabilities Total liabilities	\$ 11,950 3,038 14,988
Fund balances: Nonspendable Prepaid expenditures Unassigned Total fund balances	25,041 <u>333,870</u> 358,911
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$ 373,899

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position June 30, 2021

Total fund balances for the governmental fund at June 30, 2021		\$ 358,911
Cost of capital assets at June 30, 2021	\$ 901,247	
Less: accumulated depreciation	(819,553)	81,694
Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2021 -		
Compensated absences	(37,057)	
Net pension liability	(2,463,233)	
OPEB obligation	(2,331,401)	(4,831,691)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources at June 30, 2021:		
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions	997,300	
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB	229,023	
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB	(746,561)	
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions		479,762
Total net position (deficit) of governmental activities at June 30, 2021		\$(3,911,324)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Fund Year Ended June 30, 2021

	General Fund
Revenues:	
Licenses and permits	\$ 13,088
Fees, charges and commissions -	
Court costs, fees and charges	437,904
Fees for recording legal documents	1,721,281
Fees for certified copies	14,320
Intergovernmental	79,194
Miscellaneous	34,201
Total revenues	2,299,988
Expenditures:	
Current -	
General government -	
Salaries	1,203,228
Employee benefits	712,689
Insurance	12,611
Operation and maintenance	277,603
Vehicle	24,300
Professional services	70,555
Miscellaneous	93,139
Police jury expenditures	31,230
Capital outlay	19,427
Total expenditures	2,444,782
Excess (deficiency) of revenues	
over expenditures	(144,794)
Fund balances, beginning of year	503,705
Fund balances, end of year	\$ 358,911

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total net change in fund balances per Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance	\$ (144,794)
Capital outlay costs which are reported as expenditures in the Statement	
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balances	19,427
Increase in liability for compensated absences	25,699
Depreciation expense is not recognized as an expenditure in the	
governmental fund	(24,731)
Certain items reported in the statement of activities do not require the	
use of current financial resources and therfore are not reported as expenditures of governmental funds:	
Change in OPEB expense and related deferrals	(254,036)
Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current	
financial resources in governmental funds:	
Non employer pension contributions	118,495
Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures;	
however, in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits	
earned net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense.	
Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date	237,262
Amortization of excess contributions during the measurement period	466
Cost of benefits net of employee contributions	(176,323)
Total change in net position per Statement of Activities	\$ (198,535)
0 1r	<u> </u>

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position June 30, 2021

	Agency Funds
ASSETS	
Cash	\$4,608,810
NET POSITION	
Fiduciary net position - held for others	\$ 4,608,810

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position June 30, 2021

Additions:	
Suits and successions	\$ 891,969
Judgements	760,488
Interest	7,452
Total additions	1,659,909
Reductions:	
Refunds to litigants	1,500,579
Sheriff fees	82,757
Other	<u>73,198</u>
Total reductions	<u>1,656,534</u>
Net change in fiduciary net position	3,375
Net position - beginning	_4,605,435
Net position - ending	<u>\$ 4,608,810</u>

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

As provided by Article V, Section 28 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974, a Clerk of Court serves as the ex-officio notary public, the recorder of conveyances, mortgages, and other acts; and has other duties and powers provided by law. The Clerk of Court is elected for a four-year term.

Financial Reporting Entity

As the governing authority of the Parish, for reporting purposes, the Vermilion Parish Police Jury is the financial reporting entity for Vermilion Parish. The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government (Police Jury), organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. The criteria includes:

Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and

The ability of the Police Jury to impose its will on that organization and/or

The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Police Jury.

Organizations for which the Police Jury does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the Police Jury.

Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship.

Because the Policy Jury provides the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court (Clerk) with office space, operational expenditures and certain capital purchases, the Clerk was determined to be a component unit of the Vermilion Parish Policy Jury, the financial reporting entity. The accompanying financial statements present information only on the funds maintained by the Clerk and do not present information on the Police Jury, the general government services provided by that governmental unit, or other governmental units that comprise the financial reporting entity.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Clerk have been prepared in conformity with governmental accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the Clerk as a whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the Clerk. Information contained in these statements reflects the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange or exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is received or disbursed). Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the Clerk's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of services offered by the Clerk, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

The Clerk uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management be segregating transactions related to certain Clerk functions and activities. A fund is defined as a separate fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The various funds of the Clerk are classified into two categories: governmental and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for Clerk operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major funds, each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the entity or its total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures of the individual governmental fund is at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental funds. The General Fund of the Clerk is considered to be a major fund. The funds of the Clerk are described as follows:

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Governmental Fund -

General Fund – This fund is the primary operating fund of the Clerk and it accounts for the operations of the Clerk's office. The General Fund is available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred in accordance with state and federal laws and according to the Clerk's policy.

Fiduciary Funds -

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of other funds within the Clerk of Court. The funds accounted for in this category by the Clerk are the custodial funds. The custodial funds are as follows:

Advance Deposit Fund – The Advance Deposit Fund, as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 13:842, is used to account for advance deposits on suits filed by litigants. The advances are refundable to the litigants after all costs have been paid.

Registry of the Court Fund – The Registry of Court Fund, as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 13:475, is used to account for funds which have been ordered by the court to be held until judgment has been rendered in court litigation.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded with the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, governmental activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below. In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. The governmental fund utilizes a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on its balance sheet. Their operating statement presents sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. This fund uses fund balance as its measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b. The government-wide financial statements utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), and financial position. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with its activities are reported. Government-wide fund equity is classified as net position.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, the governmental activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures (including capital outlay) generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Cash and interest-bearing deposits

For purposes of the statement of net position, cash and interest-bearing deposits include all demand accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of the Clerk.

The clerk has established the policy of including all short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of 90 or fewer days in cash and cash equivalents. Under state law, the clerk may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States.

The clerk considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments

Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 and the clerk's investment policy. If the original maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original maturities are 90 or fewer days, they are classified as eash equivalents.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Clerk maintains a threshold level of \$1,000 for capitalizing capital assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an expense in the statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for public purposes, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method of depreciation over the following estimated useful lives:

	Estimated
Asset Class	<u>Useful Lives</u>
Office equipment	5-10
Computer and microfilm equipment	5-10

Compensated absences

Employees of the Clerk of Court's office earn 5 to 20 days of leave each year depending on length of service. Such leave is to be used for vacation, sickness, or emergencies. Employees are allowed to carryover a maximum of 15 days of unused leave to the following year.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Position in the Government-wide Financial Statements

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the Net Position amounts are classified and displayed in three components:

- Invested in capital assets This component consists of capital assets, including
 restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
 outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
 attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those capital
 assets.
- Restricted net position This component consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- Unrestricted net position This component consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets."

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Clerk's policy to use restricted resources first to finance its activities.

Fund Equity – Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions provides clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

- Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Management has classified prepaid expenditures as being nonspendable as this item is not expected to be converted to cash.
- Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of resources are either:
 - Externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
 - o Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

- Committed: This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (resolution) of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court, which is the entity's highest level of decision-making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the Clerk removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The Clerk did not have any committed resources as of year end.
- Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent should be expressed by the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court. The Clerk did not have any assigned resources as of year end.
- Unassigned: This classification is the residual fund balance of the General Fund.
 It also represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.

When fund balance resources are available for a specific purpose in multiple classifications, the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court will generally use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned as they are needed. However, the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first and to defer the use of the other classified funds.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses

Operating revenues and expenses are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. Revenues and fees, charges and commissions for services are recorded when the Clerk is entitled to the funds.

Interest on interest-bearing deposits is recorded or accrued as revenue when earned. Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function and in the funds financial statements, expenditures are classified by type.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budgetary and Budgetary Accounting

The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts included in the accompanying financial statements are as originally adopted or as finally amended by the Clerk of Court.

The following procedures apply to establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

- 1. A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Clerk of Court for the fiscal year no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year.
- 2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called.
- 3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for a hearing.
- 4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is legally adopted prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted.
- 5. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Bad Debts

All receivables are reported at their gross value and where appropriate are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 2 CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS

Under state law, the Clerk may deposit funds with a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The Clerk may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2021, the Clerk of Court has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling \$4,876,902 as follows:

	Gevernmen Fund Typ		Total
Cash and demand deposits	S 267,4	73 \$ -	S 267,473
Money market and savings accounts	6	19 _ 4,608,810	4,609,429
	S 268,09	92 \$4,608,810	<u>\$ 4,876,902</u>

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

The following is a summary of deposit balances (bank balances) at June 30, 2021, and the related federal insurance and pledged securities:

Excess of pledged securities and federal insurance	\$ 916,280
Pledged securities (Category 3)	4,596,169
Federal insurance	1,411,195
Bank balances	\$ 5,091,084

Pledged securities in Category 3 include uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Clerk of Court's name. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the Clerk of Court that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 3 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

]	Balance				F	Balance
	Jun	e 30, 2020	_A	dditions	Deletions	Jun	e 30, 2021
Governmental activities: Computer equipment Office equipment Microfilm equipment Total	\$	749,114 223,658 96,465 1,069,237	\$	2,026 17,401 - 19,427	\$(165,069) (22,348) 	\$	586,071 218,711 96,465 901,247
Less: accumulated depreciat	ion						
Computer equipment		662,116		23,038	(165,069)		520,085
Office equipment		223,658		1,693	(22,348)		203,003
Microfilm equipment		<u>96,465</u>		-	-		96,465
Tota1	***************************************	982,239		24,731	(187,417)		819,553
Net capital assets	<u>\$</u>	86,998	<u>\$</u>	(5,304)	<u> </u>	<u>\$</u>	81,694

Depreciation expense of \$24,731 was charged to the general government function.

NOTE 4 CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

	Balanc	es at				Bal	ances at
	June 30,	2020 A	dditions	Re	ductions	June	30, 2021
Compensated absences Other postemployment	S 6.	2,756 \$	37,057	\$	62,756	S	37,057
benefits	2,18	3,848	147,553		-	2	,331,401
Net pension liability	1,80	<u>3,307</u>	<u>659,926</u>		_	2	<u>,463,233</u>
Tota1	<u>\$ 4,58</u>	<u>5,993</u> <u>\$</u>	<u>844,536</u>	\$	62,756	<u>S 5</u>	<u>,367,773</u>

NOTE 5 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Certain employees of Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court participate in the Louisiana Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan adopted under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Complete disclosures relating to the Plan are included in the separately issued audit report for the Plan, available from the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, Post Office Box 94397, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9397.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Louisiana Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund, and additions to/deductions from the system's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan Description

Substantially all employees of the Clerk of Court, except part-time and temporary employees, are members of the Louisiana Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund (Fund), a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees.

The Fund was established for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits as stated under the provisions of R.S. title 11:1501 for eligible employees of the clerk of the supreme court, each of the district courts, each of the courts of appeal, each of the city and traffic courts in cities having a population in excess of four hundred thousand at the time of entrance into the Fund, the Louisiana Clerks' of Court Association, the Louisiana Clerks of Court Insurance Fund, and the employees of the Fund. The projection of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the Fund in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date.

Retirement Benefits

The Fund issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Louisiana Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund, 11745 Bricksome Avenue, Suite B1, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816, or by calling (225) 293-1162.

A member or former member shall be eligible for regular retirement benefits upon attaining twelve or more years of credited service, attaining the age of fifty-five years or more and terminating employment. Regular retirement benefits, payable monthly for life, equal 3 percent of the member's average final compensation multiplied by the number of years of credited service, not to exceed one hundred percent of the monthly average final compensation. Monthly average final compensation is based on the highest compensated thirty-six consecutive months, with a limit of increase of 10% in each of the last three years of measurement. For those members hired on or after July 1, 2006, compensation is based on the highest compensated sixty consecutive months with a limit of 10% increase in each of the last six years of measurement. Act 273 of the 2010 regular session applied the sixty consecutive months to all members. This Act has a transition period for those members who retire on or after January 1, 2011 and before December 31, 2012.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Additionally, Act 273 of the 2010 regular session increased a member's retirement to age 60 with an accrual rate of 3% for all members hired on or after January 1, 2011.

A member leaving covered employment before attaining early retirement age but after completing twelve years' credited service becomes eligible for a deferred allowance provided the member lives to the minimum service retirement age and does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions

Disability Benefits

Effective through June 30, 2008, a member who has been officially certified as totally and permanently disabled by the State Medical Disability Board shall be paid disability retirement benefits determined and computed as follows:

- a. A member who is totally and permanently disabled solely as the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties shall be paid monthly benefits equal to the greater of on-half of his monthly average final compensation or, at the option of the disability retiree, two and one-half percent of his monthly average final compensation multiplied by the number of his years of credited service; however, such monthly benefit shall not exceed twenty-five dollars for each year of his credited service or two-thirds of his monthly average final compensation, whichever is less.
- b. A member who has ten or more years of credited service and who is totally and permanently disabled due to any cause not the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties shall be paid monthly benefits equal to three percent of his monthly average final compensation multiplied by the number of his years of credited service; however, such monthly benefit shall not exceed thirty-five dollars for each year of his credited service or eighty percent of his monthly average final compensation, whichever is less.

The following is effective for any disability retiree whose application for disability retirement is approved on or after July 1, 2008. The provisions related to the calculation of benefits will apply to any disability retiree whose application for disability retirement was approved before July 1, 2008, for benefits due and payable on or after January 1, 2008.

A member is eligible to receive disability retirement benefits from the Fund if he or she is certified to be totally and permanently disabled pursuant to R.S. 11:218 and one of the following applies:

- a. The member's disability was caused solely as a result of injuries sustained in the performance of their official duties.
- b. The member has at least ten years of service credit.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

A member who has been certified as totally and permanently disabled will be paid monthly disability retirement benefits equal to the greater of:

- a. Forty percent of their monthly average final compensation.
- b. Seventy-five percent of their monthly regular retirement benefit computed pursuant to R.S. 11:1521(c).

A member leaving covered employment before attaining early retirement age but after completing twelve years' credited service becomes eligible for a deferred allowance provided the member lives to the minimum service retirement age and does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions.

Survivor Benefits

If a member who has less than five years of credited service dies, his accumulated contributions are paid to his designated beneficiary. If the member has five or more years of credited service, then automatic Option 2 benefits are payable to the surviving spouse. These benefits are based on the retirement benefits accrued at the member's date of death with option factors used as if the member had continued in service to earlies normal retirement age. Benefit payments are to commence on the date a member would have first become eligible for normal retirement assuming continued service until that time.

In lieu of a deferred survivor benefit, the surviving spouse may elect benefits payable immediately with benefits reduced ¼ of 1% of each month by which payments commence in advance of member's earlies normal retirement age. If a member has not surviving spouse, the surviving minor children under 18 or disabled children shall be paid ½ of the member's accrued retirement benefit equal shares. Upon the death of any former member with 12 or more years of service, automatic Option 2 benefits are payable to the surviving spouse with payments to commence on the member's retirement eligibility date. In lieu of periodic payments, the surviving spouse or children may receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions.

Deferred Retirement Option Plan

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of the Fund who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for up to thirty-six months and defer the receipt of benefits. Upon commencement of participation in the plan, active membership in the Fund terminates and the participant's contributions cease; however, employer contributions continue. Compensation and creditable service remain as they existed on the effective date of commencement of participation in the plan.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable, had the member elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance, are paid into the Deferred Retirement Option Plan account.

Upon termination of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in the program may receive, at his option, a lump sum payment from the Fund. If employment is not terminated at the end of the participation period, payments in to the account cease and the member resumes active contributing membership in the Fund. Upon termination, the member receives a lump sum payment from the DROP fund equal to the payments made to that fund on his behalf, or a true annuity based on his account (subject to approval by the Board of Trustees). The monthly benefit payments that were being paid into the DROP fund are paid to the retiree and an additional benefit based on his additional service rendered since termination of DROP participation is calculated using the normal method of benefit computation.

The average compensation used to calculate the additional benefit is that used to calculate the original benefit unless his period of additional service is at least thirty-six months. In no event can the entire monthly benefit amount paid to the retiree exceed 100% of the average compensation used to compute the additional benefit. If a participant dies during the period of participation in the program, a lump sum payment equal to his account balance is paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate.

Cost of Living Adjustments

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide a cost of living increase to members who have been retired for at least one full calendar year. The increase cannot exceed the lesser of 2.5% of the retiree's benefit or an increase of forty dollars per month. The Louisiana statutes allow the Board to grant an additional cost of living increase to all retirees and beneficiaries over age 65 equal to 2% of the benefit paid on October 1, 1977 or the member's retirement date if later

In lieu of granting a cost of living increase as described above, Louisiana statutes allow the board to grant a cost of living increase where the benefits shall be calculated using the number of years of service at retirement or at death plus the number of years since retirement or death multiplied buy by the cost of living amount which cannot exceed \$1. In order to grant any cost of living increase, the ratio of the actuarial value of assets to the pension benefit obligation must equal or exceed a statutory target ratio.

Employer Contributions

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. For the year ending June 30, 2021, the actual employer contributions rate was 21.00%.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

In accordance with state statute, the Fund receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations.

Schedule of Employer Allocations

The schedule of employer allocations reports the required projected employer contributions in addition to the employer allocation percentage. The required employer contributions are used to determine the proportionate relationship of each employer to all employers of Louisiana Clerks' of Court Retirement and Relief Fund. The employer's proportion was determined on a basis that is consistent with the manner in which contributions to the pension plan are determined. The allocation percentages were used in calculating each employer's proportionate share of the pension amounts.

The allocation method used in determining each employer's proportion was based on each employer's contribution to the Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 as compared to the total of all employers' contributions received by the Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer

The schedule of pension amounts by employer displays each employer's allocation of the net pension liability. The schedule of pension amounts by employer was prepared using the allocations included in the schedule of employer allocation

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the Clerk reported a liability of \$2,463,233 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Clerk's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Clerk's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the Clerk's proportion was 1.023845%, which was a increase of 0.03083% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Clerk recognized pension expense of \$458,947. The Clerk recognized revenue of \$118,495 as its proportionate share of non-employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

At June 30, 2021, the Clerk reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of Resources		Deferred Inflows of Resources	
Difference between expected and actual experience	\$	308	\$	-
Change in assumptions		218,468		-
Change in proportion and differences between the				
employer's contributions and the employer's				
proportionate share of contributions		13,329		-
Net differences between projected and actual				
earnings on plan investments		527,933		
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date		237,262	l.	-
	\$	997,300	\$	

Deferred outflows of resources of \$237,262 related to pensions resulting from the Clerk's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the plan year ended June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30,		
2021	\$ 161,846	
2022	239,343	
2023	207,450	
2024	151,399	
	\$ 760,038	

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position.

Valuation date June 30, 2020

Salary increases (merit only) 1-5 years of service - 6.2%

5 years of service - 5.0%

Investment rate of return 6.75%

Mortality rates Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans multiplied by 120%.

Mortality Table with full generational projection using the

appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale

Expected remaining service lives 5 years

Cost of living adjustments

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on

benefits currently being paid by the Fund and Included previously granted cost of living increases. The present values do not include provisions for potential future increases no year authorized by the Board of Trustees as they were deemed not to be substantially

automatic

The mortality rate assumption used was verified by combining data from this plan with three other statewide plans which have similar workforce composition in order to produce a credible experience. The aggregated data was collected over the period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2009. The data was then assigned credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the Fund's liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those produced by using a setback of standard tables.

The result of the procedure indicated that these tables would produce liability values approximating generational mortality tables used.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the Fund's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the Fund's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.75% or one percentage point higher 7.75% Than the current rate.

		Current			
	1% Discount 1%				
	Decrease	Rate	Increase		
	5.75%	6.75%	7.75%		
Net Pension Liabilities	3,437,406	2,463,233	1,642,127		

Change in Net Pension Liability

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2020 were recognized in the current reporting period as pension expense except as follows:

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience – Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference between expected and actual experience resulted in a deferred outflow of resources in the amount of \$308 for the plan year ended June 30, 2020.

Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earning – Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five year period. The difference between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred outflow of resources in the amount of \$527,933 for the plan year ended June 30, 2020.

Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs – Changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors or of other inputs were recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. Changes of assumptions or other inputs resulted in a deferred outflow of resources in the amount of \$218,468 for the plan year ended June 30, 2020.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Change in Proportion – Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan. Changes in proportion resulted in a net deferred outflow of resources in the amount of \$13,329 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Contributions-Proportionate Share

Differences between contributions remitted to the Fund and the employer's proportionate share are recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a pension through the pension plan. The resulting deferred inflow/outflow and amortization is not reflected in the schedule of employer amounts due to differences that could arise between contributions reported by the Fund and contributions reported by the participating employer.

NOTE 7 CHANGES IN BALANCES - AGENCY FUNDS

		Advanced Deposit Fund		Registry of Court Fund	
Balance, beginning of year	\$	1,852,553	\$	2,752,882	
Additions		891,969		767,940	
Reductions		(879,684)		(776,850)	
Balance, end of year	<u>\$</u>	1,864,838	\$	2,743,972	

NOTE 8 EXPENDITURES PAID BY THE VERMILION PARISH POLICE JURY

Certain operating expenditures of the Clerk's office are paid by the Vermilion Parish Police Jury and are included in the accompanying financial statements. These expenditures are summarized as follows:

Equipment maintenance and software

\$ 31,230

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 9 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description – The Clerk's defined benefit postemployment health care plan provides OPEB to eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. The plan provides OPEB for permanent full-time employees of the Clerk. The Clerk's OPEB is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the Clerk. Benefits are provided through the Louisiana Clerk of Court Insurance Trust ("LCCIT"), a multiple-employer healthcare plan administered by the Louisiana Clerk of Court Association. Louisiana Revised Statute §13:783 grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. The premium rates are established and may be amended by the LCCIT board of trustees, with the Clerk determining the contribution requirements of the retirees.

Benefits provides: The Clerk provides medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits for retirees and their departments. The benefit terms provide for payment of 65% of retiree and dependent pre-Medicare health, Medicare Supplement, vision, dental and life insurance premiums.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At January 1, 2021, date of the actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits payments	16
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments	0
Active employees	27
Total	43

Total OPEB Liability

The Clerk's total OPEB liability of \$2,331,401 was measured as of June 30, 2021 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2021.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation:2.40%Salary Increases, including inflation:3.25%Discount Rate:1.92%

Health Care Cost Trend Rates

4.95% for 2021, 6.25% for 2022, decreasing 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for

2027 and later years.

Medicial: 0% for 2021, 4.75% for 2022, decreasing 0.25%

to an ultimate rat of 3.0% for 2029 and later years. Includes 2% per year for aging.

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 9 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Medicare Supplement:

Dental: 3.0% annual trend Vision: 3.0% annual trend

Retirees' Share of Benefit-Related Costs:

Medical: 35% for retirees and 35% for dependents.

Medicare Supplement: 35% for retirees and 35% for dependents.

Dental: 35% for retirees and 35% for dependents.

Vision: 35% for retirees and 35% for dependents.

Basic Life Insurance: 35% for retirees and 35% for dependents.

The discount rate was based on the 6/30/2021 Fidelity General Obligation AA 20-Year Yield.

Mortality rates for active employees were based on the PubG.H-2010 Employee Mortality Table, Generational with Projection Scale MP-2019 for males or females, as appropriate.

Mortality rates for retired employees were based on the PubG.H-2010 Healthy Annuitant mortality table, Generational with Projection Scale MP-2020 for males or females, as appropriate.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on those used in the Louisiana Clerks of Court Retirement and Relief Fund valuation and actuarial experience.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Balance at 6/30/2020	\$ 2,183,848
Changes for the year:	
Service cost	65,507
Interest	54,147
Differences between expected and actual experience	1,612
Changes in assumptions/Inputs	104,871
Benefit payments	(78,584)
Net changes	<u>147,553</u>
Balance at 6/30/2021	\$2,331,401

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 9 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Clerk, as well as what the Clerk's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 0.92 percent or 1-percent-point higher 2.92 percent than the current discount rate:

	1% Decrease	Discount Rate	1% Increase
	0.92%	1.92%	2.92%
Total OPEB liability	<u>\$ 2,707,830</u>	<u>\$ 2,331,401</u>	<u>\$ 1.978.976</u>

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates: The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Clerk, as well as what the Clerk's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare trend rates:

	1% Decrease	Trend Rate	1% Increase		
Total OPEB liability	<u>\$ 2,120,890</u>	<u>\$ 2.331,401</u>	\$ 2,575,693		

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Clerk recognized an OPEB expense of \$49,266. At June 30, 2021, the Clerk reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

	Γ	eferred	Γ	Deferred	
	C	Outflows	Inflows		
	of I	Resources	of Resources		
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	1,411	\$	257,447	
Changes of assumptions or other inputs		227,612		489,114	
Total	<u>s</u>	229,023	<u>\$</u>	746,561	

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:	
2022	(70,387)
2023	(70,387)
2024	(70,387)
2025	(76,594)
2026	(76,594)
Thereafter	_(153,189)
	<u>\$(517,538)</u>

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 10 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Clerk is exposed to risks of loss in the areas of auto liability, professional liability, and workers compensation. All of these risks are handled by purchasing commercial insurance coverage. There have been no significant reductions in the insurance coverage during the year.

NOTE 11 COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO CLERK OF COURT

A detail of compensation, benefits, and other payments made to Clerk of Court Diane Meaux Broussard for the year ended June 30, 2021 follows:

Purpose	Amount
Salary	\$ 161,992
Benefits - insurance	14,612
Benefits - retirement	47,382
Benefits - deferred comp.	7,200
Auto allowance	24,300
Conference travel and other expenses	2,500
Total	\$ 257,986

NOTE 12 CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported to have surfaced in China. The World Health Organization has characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of industries. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Entity's operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on our revenue sources, employees, and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Entity's financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

NOTE 13 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

As of July 1, 2020, the Clerk adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes new criteria for identifying fiduciary activities which, when met, require that the activities be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. A statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position are required to be presented for these activities. This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension and other employee benefit trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds (formerly agency funds).

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 13 NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT (Continued)

With the adoption of GASB Statement No. 84, a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position have been presented as part of the basic financial statements. These statements consist of the Clerk's custodial funds (formerly agency funds).

The changes have the following effect on the accounts listed below at June 30, 2020:

	As	Originally	Aft	er Adoption
Accounts Affected	F	resented	of	GASB 84
Due to litigants and others	\$	4,605,435		
Net position - held for others	\$	-	\$	4,605,435

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 6, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. There were no events that required disclosure.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Comparison Schedule General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2021

		Budg	et		ļ	Actual	Fina	ance With Il Budget sitive or
		Original		Final	Amounts		(Negative)	
Revenues:		O'I SILLII		-		THO CALLS		ogau.c)
Licenses and permits	\$	25,500	\$	15,200	\$	13,088	\$	(2,112)
Fees, charges and commissions -	450	,	37.0	*			100	X 3 7
Court costs, fees and charges		376,000	1	362,800		437,904		75,104
Fees for recording legal documents		1,584,000		733,000	1	,721,281		(11,719)
Fees for certified copies		15,000		15,000		14,320		(680)
Intergovernmental		79,000		74,000		79,194		5,194
Miscellaneous		25,500		28,000		34,201		6,201
Total revenues	(2,105,000	2,	228,000	_2	,299,988	() 	71,988
Expenditures:								
Current -								
General government -								
Salaries		1,094,000	1,2	206,000	1	,203,228		2,772
Employee benefits		701,000		744,000		712,689		31,311
Insurance		16,500		15,000		12,611		2,389
Operation and maintenance		199,500		288,000		277,603		10,397
Vehicle		25,000		25,000		24,300		700
Professional services		90,000		71,000		70,555		445
Miscellaneous		107,000		99,000		93,139		5,861
Police jury expenditures		49,000		49,000		31,230		17,770
Capital outlay		5,000		5,000		19,427		(14,427)
Total expenditures	(d <u></u>	2,287,000	2,	502,000	_2	,444,782	38 -	57,218
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		(182,000)	_0	274,000)		(144,794)	1	129,206
Fund balance, beginning of year	\$ 	503,705		503,705		503,705		* ** 8
Fund balance, end of year	\$	321,705	\$ 2	<u>229,705</u>	<u>\$</u>	358,911	\$	129,206

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios Year Ended June 30, 2021

	2018	2018 2019		2021
Total OPEB Liability				
Service Cost	\$ 53,839	53,293	52,476	65,507
Interest	101,544	89,026	92,096	54,147
Changes of benefit terms	-	-	-	-
Differences between expected and actual experience	(15,141)	(221,483)	(180,278)	1,612
Changes in assumptions or other inputs	-	271,700	(628,861)	104,871
Benefit payments	(96,605)	(104,378)	(82,923)	(78,584)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability	\$ 43,637	\$ 88,158	\$ (747,490)	\$ 147,553
Total OPEB Liability - beginning	\$ 2,799,543	\$ 2,843,180	\$ 2,931,338	\$ 2,183,848
Total OPEB Liability - ending	\$ 2,843,180	\$ 2.931,338	\$ 2,183,848	\$ 2,331,401
Covered Employee Payroll	\$ 886,262	\$ 912,850	\$ 939,824	\$ 968,019
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll	320.81%	321.12%	232.37%	240.84%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms:

None

Changes of Assumptions:

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the dicount rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

2018	3.62%
2019	3.13%
2020	2.45%
2021	1.92%

Mortallity Rates

2018	RPH 2014 Employee and Healthy Annuity,
	Generational with MP-2019
2019	PubG.H-2010 Employee and Healthy Annuity,
	Generational with MP-2019
2020	PubG.H-2010 Employee and Healthy Annuity,
	Generational with MP-2019
2021	PubG.H-2010 Employee and Healthy Annuity,
	Generational with MP-2020

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability Year Ended June 30, 2021

		(a)	(b)	(a/b)	
Year Ended June 30	Proportion of the net pension liability	oportionate re of the net pension liability	Covered employee payroll	Share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its covered employee payroll	Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability
2015	1.093779%	\$ 1,475,357	\$1,004,522	146.87%	79.37%
2016	1.109114%	\$ 1,663,706	\$ 990,911	167.90%	78.13%
2017	1.085040%	\$ 2,007,296	\$ 908,911	220.85%	74.17%
2018	1.007500%	\$ 1,524,293	\$ 886,262	171.99%	79.69%
2019	0.968869%	\$ 1,611,520	\$ 965,542	166.90%	79.07%
2020	0.993015%	\$ 1,803,307	\$1,015,195	177.63%	77.93%
2021	1.023845%	\$ 2,463,233	\$1,129,819	218.02%	72.09%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Schedule of Pension Contributions Year Ended June 30, 2021

Year Ended June 30	r	ntractually equired ntribution	cor re	(a) Intributions Elative to Intractually equired Intribution	defic	ibution iency eess)	(b) Covered employee payroll	(a/b) Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll
2015	\$	190,859	\$	190,859	\$	_	\$1,004,522	19.0%
2016	\$	188,273	\$	188,273	\$	-	\$ 990,911	19.0%
2017	\$	172,693	\$	172,693	\$	-	\$ 908,911	19.0%
2018	\$	168,390	\$	168,390	\$	-	\$ 886,262	19.0%
2019	\$	183,453	\$	183,453	\$	-	\$ 965,542	19.0%
2020	\$	192,887	\$	192,887	\$	-	\$1,015,195	19.0%
2021	\$	237,262	\$	237,262	\$	-	\$1,129,819	21.0%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

VERMILION PARISH CLERK OF COURT

Schedule of Justice System Funding – Collecting/Disbursing Entity As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Session Cash Basis Presentation Year Ended June 30, 2021

	First Six Month Period Ended 12/31/2020	Second Six Month Period Ended 6/30/2021
Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected	1,796,651	1,865,519
Add: Collections		
Civil Fees	426,402	482,075
Bond Fees	5,150	5,000
Criminal Court Costs/Fees	23,712	21,623
Interest Earnings on Collected Balances	2,358	2,887
Subtotal Collections	457,622	511,585
Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits:		
Secretary of State Service Fees	2,550	3,350
LA State Treasurey-Battered Women's Fund	1,040	1,040
Louisiana Supreme Court-Judicial College Fund	261	500
15th JDC Court Administrator-Judicial Expense Fund	7,085	8,170
Supreme Court of Louisiana-Commissioner of Insurance Fee	175	225
Third Circuit Court of Appeals-Appeals Fees	672	1,009
LA Clerks of Court Association-Clerk's Supplemental Comp Fund	15,840	12,802
Louisiana State Treasurer-Judge's Supplemental Comp Fund	12,320	14,218
Vermilion Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	20,326	22,902
Acadia Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	796	1,060
Ascension Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	15	80
Avoyelles Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	99	43
Beauregard Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	(I=	46
Caddo Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	35	170
Calcasieu Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	148	224
Cameron Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	81	104
Concordia Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	73	(/ =)
East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	5,211	5,482
East Feliciana Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	45	57 2 0
Evangeline Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	35	46
Iberia Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	686	1,109
Jefferson Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	315	385
Jefferson Davis Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	143	41
Lafayette Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	7,056	8,746
Orleans Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	110	485
Ouachita Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	35)(***)
Rapides Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	11 11 .	110
St. Landry Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	357	436
St. Martin Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	238	705
St. Mary Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	59	105
St. Tammany Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	81	198
Terrebonne Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	-	8
Washington Parish Sheriff-Service Fees	a=	47
Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency Collection Fee for Collecting/Disbursing to Others Based on Percentage of Collection	257,690	294,484
Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies		
Civil Fee Refunds	45,246	113,106
Restitution Payments to Individuals	9,586	4,185
Bank fees	359	478
Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage	388,754	496,099
Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained	1,865,519	1,881,005

COMPLIANCE

AND

INTERNAL CONTROL



1231 East Laurel Avenue Eunice, LA 70535

OTHER LOCATIONS:
Lafayette Morgan City

Abbeville

P 337-457-4146 DSFCPAS.COM F 337-457-5060

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Diane Meaux Broussard Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court Abbeville, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, and major fund of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court, a component unit of the Vermilion Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2021-01 and 2021-02 that we consider to be a material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's Response to Findings

The Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick

A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants

Abbeville, Louisiana December 6, 2021

Schedule of Findings and Responses Year Ended June 30, 2021

Part I: Summary of Auditor's Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor's Report – Financial Statements

An unmodified opinion has been issued on Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Internal Control Deficiencies - Financial Reporting

Material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements and are reported as findings 2021-01 and 2021-02 in Part II.

Material Noncompliance - Financial Reporting

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

FEDERAL AWARDS

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Part II: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standard

2021-01 Reconciliation of Accounts Receivable Subsidiary to the General Ledger

Condition – Our audit procedures relating to accounts receivable revealed an absence of procedures to timely reconcile the accounts receivable subsidiary to the general ledger.

Criteria – Accounts receivable should be reconciled at least monthly to ensure accurate accounting records.

Cause – The factors that contributed to this issue include lack of accounting experience, technical issues with accounting software, and insufficient monitoring of the reconciliation function.

Effect – The failure to reconcile the accounts receivable subsidiary to the general ledger results in inaccurate reporting of financial information and inefficiencies in the audit process.

Recommendation – Management should require that accounting staff perform a monthly reconciliation of the accounts receivable subsidiary to the general ledger.

Schedule of Findings and Responses Year Ended June 30, 2021

Part II: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (continued)

2021-02 Miscodings

Condition – Transactions and entries recorded and affecting the amounts reported as revenues and expenditures were miscoded and inconsistently recorded as to account and fund.

Criteria – To ensure accurate and timely financial reporting, all transactions and adjustments should be properly coded as to account, fund, and period.

Cause – The audit revealed miscodings and postings affecting various accounts and funds. Incomplete closing procedures in one fund resulted in an untimely submitted working trial balance.

Effect –Inconsistent and erroneous coding could result in misstatement of financial statements, compromised budgeting decisions, and audit inefficiencies.

Recommendation – Diligent and timely monitoring should be performed to ensure that all transactions are captured and properly coded to the respective accounts, funds and period.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions – This information is in the separate Summary Schedule of Management's Corrective Action Plan on page 51.

Part III: Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Programs

At June 30, 2021, the Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court did not meet the requirements to have a single audit in accordance with *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards*; therefore this section is not applicable.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings Year Ended June 30, 2021

2020-01 Bank Reconciliation Procedures

Finding: Bank reconciliations are not being prepared timely and accurately. Management is

not documenting their evaluation of stale outstanding items (checks and deposits).

Status: This issue has been resolved.

Summary Schedule of Management's Corrective Action Plan Year Ended June 30, 2021

The following is management's corrective action plan in response to each of the current year findings:

2021-01 Reconciliation of Accounts Receivable Subsidiary to the General Ledger

The Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court will assign personnel to reconcile the accounts receivable subsidiary to the general ledger on a monthly basis.

2021-02 Miscodings

The Vermilion Parish Clerk of Court will improve review procedures in order to timely monitor all transactions and ensure that they are properly captured and coded to the respective accounts and funds providing for timely submission of working trial balances to facilitate efficient audit progress.